
Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee

Published Thursday, 12 July 2018

Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee

Date:
Time:
Place:

Friday 20 July 2018
10am
Belvedere Room, Barrow Park Complex, Mount Edgcumbe, 
Cremyll, Cornwall

Committee Members–

Plymouth City Councillors-
Councillors Corvid, Johnson, Mahony, Mavin, Mrs Pengelly, Peter Smith and Vincent (Co-Chair).

Cornwall Councillors-
Councillors Burden, Crago, Foot, James, Lennox-Boyd, Pugh and Trubody (Co-Chair).

Co-opted Members-
Sir Richard Carew Pole Bt., Mr Neil Rugg and Mr D L Richards.

Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of 
business overleaf.

For further information on attending Council meetings and how to engage in the democratic 
process please follow this link - http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings

Tracey Lee and Kate Kennally
Joint Clerks 

Joint Clerks

Kate Kennally
Chief Executive
Cornwall Council
Council Offices
Treyew Road
Truro TR1 3AY
T: 01872 322000

Tracey Lee
Chief Executive
Plymouth City Council 
Ballard House
West Hoe Road
Plymouth PL1 3BJ 
T: 01752 668000

Please reply to: Helen Prendergast/Amelia 
Boulter
T: 01752 668000
E:
democraticsupport@plymouth.
gov.uk

#mountedgcumbe

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/accesstomeetings


Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee

1. To Note the Appointment of the Joint Chairs from Plymouth City 
Council and Cornwall Council  

The Joint Committee will be asked to note the appointment of the Joint Chairs from 
Plymouth City Council and Cornwall Council.

2. Apologies  

To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Joint Committee Members.

3. Declarations of Interest  

Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of items on this 
agenda.

4. Minutes  (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 24 November 2017 as a correct record.

5. Chair's Urgent Business  

To receive reports on business, which in the opinion of the Chair, should be brought 
forward for urgent consideration.

6. English Garden House Heritage Enterprise Bid  

7. Revenue Outturn 2017/18 and Budget 2018/19 (Pages 5 – 30)

8. Commercial Development (Presentation)

9. Park Manager's Report  (Pages 31 – 36)

10. Friends of Mount Edgcumbe Country Park Update  (Pages 37 – 38)



Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee Friday 24 November 2017

Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee

Friday 24 November 2017

PRESENT:

Councillor Trubody, in the Chair.
Councillors Burden, Fry, Foot, Dr Mahony, Mrs Pengelly (Joint Chair), Pugh, Smith and Vincent.

Co-opted Representatives: Mr D L Richards and Mr Neil Rugg.

Apologies for absence: Councillors Frank James and Sparling.

Also in attendance: Amelia Boulter (Observer),Chris Burton (Park Manager), Nick Butcher 
(Head Gardener/Ranger), Sarah Fell (Finance Business Partner), Jon James (natural Environment 
Manager), Nicola Moyle (Head of Heritage and Arts), Jonney Steven (Head of Commercial 
Enterprise) and Helen Prendergast (Democratic Adviser).

The meeting started at 10.00 am and finished at 11.45 am.

Note: At a future meeting, the committee will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes, so they may 
be subject to change.  Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm whether these minutes have 
been amended.

11. Declarations of Interest  

In accordance with the code of conduct, Councillor Pugh declared a private interest as he 
owned a holiday property.

12. Minutes  

The Joint Committee agreed that the minuets of the meeting held on 28 July 2017 are 
confirmed as a correct record.

13. Chair's Urgent Business  

There were no items of Chair’s urgent business.

14. Commercial Opportunity - Tree Houses  

Jonny Steven (Head of Commercial Enterprise) and Chris Burton (Park Manager) provided a 
presentation on the commercial opportunities within the Park which highlighted the 
following key areas -

(a) how to enhance the existing offer at the Park (holiday 
accommodation, weddings/events/conferences, micro businesses 
and lettings and parking) whilst increasing income and developing 
the Grade I Listed site sensitively;

 



(b) investigating other buildings within the Park which could be utilised 
for accommodation such as Captain Blake’s Hut, part of the Coast 
Guard look at Rame Head, tree houses, the English Garden House 
and Garden Battery;

(c)
 

a feasibility study was currently being undertaken into the provision 
of tree houses (three) at Wilderness Point; the trees would not be 
damaged as the structures would be built around them using screw 
piles; this would also be sensitive to the environment and have no 
visual impact on this area;

 
(d)
 

the Friends of Mount Edgcumbe Country Park had donated £10,000 
to undertake preparatory work to bid for a grant from the Heritage 
Lottery for the English Garden House.

The key areas of questioning related to –

(e) the timescale and funding for the provision of the tree houses;

(f) the feasibility of converting part of the Coast Guard building into 
holiday accommodation;

(g) whether the tree houses would be able to be marketed all year.

The Joint Committee noted the presentation and requested that an update on the tree 
houses (including the business case) be provided at the next Joint Committee meeting.

15. Revenue Budget Monitoring  

Sarah Fell (Finance Business Partner) presented the revenue budget monitoring 2017/18 
report which highlighted the current financial position.

The main area of questioning related to whether the constituent authorities had made 
provision for contingency funds should there be unexpected expenditure within the Park.

The Joint Committee noted the financial position contained in the report along with the 
risks, issues and any mitigating actions.

16. Commercial Development  

Chris Burton (Park Manager) provided the Joint Committee with a presentation on the 
commercial development opportunities within the Park. This included the increase in the 
public offer at the Park including 18 small businesses, three holiday cottages, glamping 
(shepherd huts) and the new website.

The key areas of questioning related to the decrease in the number of weddings and 
whether wedding parties were taking advantage of the accommodation available within the 
Park.

The Joint Committee noted the report.



17. Park Activity (September 2017)  

Chris Burton (Park Manager) presented the park activity report to September 2017 which 
highlighted the works and activities carried out in the Park which included business 
development, building and Park infrastructure and weddings.

The key areas of questioning related to whether there –

(a) was a power supply to Captain Blake’s Hut;
 

(b) had been any noticeable deterioration of the cycle paths which 
could be attributed to the cycle hire based within the Park;

 
(c) would be an opportunity to expand the hostile environment 

training courses.

The Joint Committee noted the report.

18. Friends of Mount Edgcumbe Country Park Update  

Mr Neil Rugg, Chair of the Friends of Mount Edgcumbe Country Park provided an update on 
the key areas of work that the Friends undertook in supporting the Park which included 
financial and practical support and social events.

On behalf of the Joint Committee, the Joint Chairs thanked the Friends for their continued 
and highly valued support. 

19. Repair Works to the Sea Wall  

Jon James (Cornwall Council) provided a verbal update on the current position relating to 
the repair works on the sea wall which highlighted that -

(a) as previously stated the repair works on the sea wall had been 
completed; the savings achieved through the contract (£150,000) 
had enabled further repair works to be  undertaken at Mount 
Edgcumbe Quay, Toll House Quay, Lower Lodge and the Garden 
Battery Beach;

 
(b) whilst undertaking these works the contractor discovered a large 

stone arch at Barn Pool which was thought to be the remains of a 
medieval barn;

(c)
 

the stone arch had been placed in the garden at the front of the 
house; it was the intention to erect visitor information boards at 
this site.

The Joint Committee noted the report.





PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Revenue Outturn 2017/18 and Budget 2018/19

Committee: Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee

Date: 20 July 2018

Joint Chairs: Councillor Vincent, Plymouth City Council

Councillor Trubody, Cornwall Council

Cabinet Member: Councillor Peter Smith, Plymouth City Council

Councillor Sue James, Cornwall Council

CMT Member: Anthony Payne, Strategic Director for Place, Plymouth City 
Council

Peter Marsh,Service Director Environment, Cornwall Council

Author: Christopher Burton, Mount Edgcumbe Park Manager 

Contact: Tel:  01752 307269
e-mail: Chris.Burton@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref: PL Place Fin.

Key Decision: No

Part: I 

Purpose of the report:
This report presents the final outturn position of Mount Edgcumbe for the financial year 2017/18 and 
confirms the 2018/19 budget.

Corporate Plan:

Plymouth City Council:
This monitoring report links to delivering the priorities within the Council’s Corporate Plan. 
Cornwall Council: 
2018-22 Business Plan:
Healthy Cornwall
Homes for Cornwall
Green and prosperous Cornwall
Connecting Cornwall
Democratic Cornwall

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    
Including finance, human, IT and land

In November 2017, a forecast nil variation to budget was reported to the Joint Committee. The final 
outturn is a £87k surplus.



Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health & Safety and Risk 
Management:

Monitoring of commercial project delivery times and ensuring they perform in accordance with 
budgets set, with continued focus to sensibly capitalise on existing assets, to generate new and / or 
more income as soon as possible.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

It is recommended that Joint Committee:

 Notes the financial position contained in the report along with the risks, issues and any 
mitigating actions

 Approves the capital proposals to be presented to Plymouth City Council’s Investment Board

Alternative options considered and rejected:

None

Published work / information:

None
_____________________________________________________________________
Background papers: 

See appendix

Sign off:  Paul Looby

Fin pl18.19.45 Leg N/A Mon 
Off

N/A HR N/A Assets N/A IT N/A Strat 
Proc

N/A

Originating SMT Member: David Draffan
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the contents of the report? Yes/No



Section 1

1.1 Revenue outturn 2017/18 - Financial summary  

2016/17 2017/18

 
Increase/ 
Decrease Income Exp. Net Income Exp. Net
% £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Staffing & operations -14 482 468 -52 507 455 -14
House 6415 7353 15% -42 55 13 -47 34 -13 -26 Visitor admissions
Gardens 0 16 16 -5 17 12 -4
Grounds -27 97 70 -27 90 64 -7
Trading activities:

Rents 40 41 2% -161 61 -100 -155 26 -129 -29 Units let - 43 Total units
Holiday Lets 322 355 10% -45 12 -33 -32 17 -15 17 Days occupied - Max. 183 per-let

Chalets 81 81 0% -66 0 -66 -79 0 -79 -12 All units let - 21 Yr. Lease from Yr.2000
Glamping 0 55 N/A -15 2 -13 -5 3 -2 11 Days occupied - Max. 109 per-hut

Parking -83 1 -81 -81 2 -80 2 No figures available
Special events 18 20 11% -22 29 8 -28 33 5 -3 Does not include Sat. Park Run

Conferences 9 12 33% -15 11 -5 -28 14 -14 -10 Total annual bookings
Weddings 32 33 3% -58 7 -52 -61 14 -48 4 Wedding functions

Filming 4 5 25% 0 2 2 -4 0 -4 -6
Misc. activities -7 3 -4 -16 1 -15 -12 No measurable comparrison

Total operations -554 778 224 -620 756 137 -87

Subsidy Corn.CC -112 0 -112 -87 0 -87 25
Subsidy PCC -112 0 -112 -87 0 -87 25
Subsidy total -224 0 -224 -174 0 -174 50

Deficit / (Surplus) 0 -37 -37

Cornwall & Plymouth's subsidy to Mt. 
Edgcumbe - £25k each (£50k) to be refunded

CommentsBusiness type Activity volumes 2017/18 Budget 2017/18 Outturn Variation 
to net 
budget

Note 
2017/18 Was the first year for glamping and why no precedent available.  



1.2 Commentary

Key variations can be summarised as:

 (£48k) Repairs & Maintenance budget underspend 
 (£19k) Additional income inclusive of ranger time, photo shoots, filming, and conferences
 (£12k) Utilities savings
 (£16k) Additional donations received
 £8k Transport, cleaning & misc. costs
 (£87k) Total 

Repairs & Maintenance budget underspend 
Across the whole of Mt. Edgcumbe anticipated / scheduled  repairs and maintenance work was not carried-out per-original forecast, mainly due to work not 
being required before year-end. e.g. Tree works after winter was expected to be a lot higher than originally budgeted for (due to health of the tree’s), as well 
as general maintenance across the estate buildings and grounds, which also did not require repairs this year. 

Additional income from ranger time, photo shoots, filming, and conferences 
Additional income for ranger time (tours of the grounds and house), photo shoots & filming (normally at short notice), and additional conference room 
bookings.

Utilities savings
This was the first year where Mt. Edgcumbe had no water leaks on the estate and bills were paid according to meter readings only; no estimated charges. 
After much liaison with South West Water this has been confirmed and that no charges on any of the meters were due or outstanding a payment. 

Additional donations received 
Additional donations in the last month of 2017/18 received by the Friends (from the mini-bus collection) and some very generous visitors. 

Increased transport, cleaning & misc. costs 
Due to:

 Slightly higher use of transport costs. e.g. Parking & vehicle hire charges
 Slightly higher cleaning costs. e.g. Increased holiday let’s use and glamping 
 Occupational Health costs
 Slightly higher electricity costs across the Park. e.g. Additional unit rented out & increased holiday let use 
 Slightly higher professional fees. e.g. Licenses for additional TV’s 
 Numerous small costs across Mt. Edgcumbe’s budgets



Subsidy / surplus
The full £112k subsidy, per-authority, was not required in 2017/18 with £25k each to be refunded (£50k total) and £37k being transferred to the reserve, for 
purchase of a new vehicle in 2018/19. Please see appendix 1. for prior year subsidy trend analysis.



Section 2 

2.1 Revenue budget planning 2018/19  

Income Exp. Net Income Exp. Net
£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's £000's

Staffing & operations -14 564 550 -14 564 550 0
House -42 47 6 -42 47 6 0
Gardens 0 9 9 0 9 9 0
Grounds -27 66 39 -27 66 39 0
Trading activities:

Rents -206 43 -163 -206 43 -163 0
Holiday Lets -56 18 -39 -56 18 -39 0

Chalets -72 0 -72 -72 0 -72 0
Glamping -15 1 -14 -15 1 -14 0

Parking -81 2 -79 -81 2 -79 0
Special events -22 29 8 -22 29 8 0

Conferences -10 9 -1 -10 9 -1 0
Weddings -58 7 -52 -58 7 -52 0

Filming (future Opp) 0 2 2 0 2 2 0
Misc. activities -7 3 -4 -7 3 -4 0

Total operations -610 800 190 -610 800 190 0

Subsidy Corn.CC -95 0 -95 -95 0 -95 0
Subsidy PCC -95 0 -95 -95 0 -95 0
Subsidy total -190 0 -190 -190 0 -190 0

Deficit / (Surplus) 0 0 0

Business type 2018/19 Budget 2018/19 Latest Forecast Variation to 
net budget



Section 3

3.1 Approved capital programme

Scheme Funding Prior Years 
Spend

17/18 Actual 18/19 Budget Total 
Scheme cost

£000's £000's £000's £000's
Mount Edgcumbe 
Commercialisation

Loan (50% Corn.CC & 
50% PCC) 40,265 97,302 166,554 304,121

Tree Houses Loan (50% Corn.CC & 
50% PCC) 0 0 622,000 622,000

3.2 Proposals for future capital projects  

Proposed future projects
Possible 
funding Mandate Business case

Leader 
approval Key:

Restoration & maintenance

Purchase of Lady Emma's 
Cottage

Borrowing / 
donation

To go to CCIB in June 2018 and 
purchase anticipated to complete in 
2018/19

In draft
No 
business 
case draft

Business 
case in 
draft

Business 
case 
presented 
to CCIB

Purchase of a new Land Rover Reserves

Anticipated to be purchased in June / 
July 2018

N/A As 
purchase value 
is too low

Restoration of English Garden 
House

Herritage 
Lottery 
Fund grant

Bid expected to be submitted for 
work to begin in 2019/20



Section 4

4.1 Recommendations

It is recommended that Joint Committee:

 Notes the financial position contained in the report along with the risks, issues and any mitigating actions
 Approves the capital proposals to be presented to Plymouth City Council’s Investment Board, subject to a detailed business case



Appendix. 1

1.0 Income & expenditure V’s subsidy

Financial performance over the last 8 years.

Note
Financial years 2019/20 Onwards represents projected income and expenditure, based on current projects. 
It is also expected that as more commercial income is achieved the subsidy will be reduced.





































Revised Jul 2013

PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL

Subject: Report on Park Activity to September 2017

Committee: Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee

Date: 20 July 2018

Cabinet Members: Councillor Peter Smith and Councillor James

CMT Members: Anthony Payne (Plymouth City Council) and Peter Marsh (Cornwall Council)

Author: Chris Burton - Park Manager

Contact details: T: 01752 822236  
E-mail: chris.burton@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref: MEP /gen

Key Decision: No

Part: 1

Purpose of the report:
This report provides an update on activities in the park.

Corporate Plan:

Delivering excellent services.

Maintaining service through income generation.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:    
Including finance, human, IT and land:
None.

Other Implications: e.g. Child Poverty, Community Safety, Health and Safety and Risk 
Management:

None.

Equality and Diversity:

Has an Equality Impact Assessment been undertaken?   No

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:
The Joint Committee notes the information.

Alternative options considered and rejected:
N/A



Revised Jul 2013

Published work / information:
N/A

Background papers:

Exemption Paragraph NumberTitle Part 1 Part II
1 2 3 4 5 6 7

Sign off:  

Fin Leg Mon 
Off

HR Assets IT Strat 
Proc

Originating SMT Member
Has the Cabinet Member(s) agreed the content of the report?  Yes / No



Revised Jul 2013

1.0 Introduction

1.1 This report informs members of the works and activities carried out since September 2017.

2.0 Park Matters 

The Black Bee Reserve has received more funding from Tesco and has allocated this to an 
Observation Hive, Queen rearing hive and Bee Cam. They have also received money from the 
community fund to put a roof on the observation area. A Bee club has been started with Four 
Lanes End and Carbeile schools and electrical supply has been installed to the reserve and 
Garden Battery.

2.1 The house shop has had a new makeover and stocking. The impact of this has been obvious 
by the record turnover of almost £1000 a day and daily shop taking up by some 50%.  There 
has also been a Flog It effect on house admissions which are expected to be much higher this 
year.

2.2 An interpretation board is completed on Captain Cook and will join Lawrence of Arabia in 
the Park.  There will also be a Cook display in the house using material gathered in the 
development of the interpretation board.  It is hoped to work on the general Park board this 
summer also. 

3.0 The Higher Level Stewardship Scheme (HLS) is completed and the claim sent to Natural 
England.

3.1 The Rangers are continuing to carry out the work involved with the  ‘Quantifiable  Tree 
Safety Risk Assessment’ (QTRA)  and are now able to follow national best practice in 
assessing tree safety in the Park. The Park now has a Tree Safety Management Plan in place.  
A good deal of tree safety work took place over winter. 

3.2 The Park has been granted a sum of £14,000 from the Friends of Mount Edgcumbe in order to 
draw up an Heritage Lottery (HLF) bid for the English Garden House, this has gone out to 
tender at the time of writing with proposals in by the 30 November. The money for this bid is 
part of a gift of £70,000 from the Oak Foundation.

3.3 The ‘Garden Team’ has had numerous groups of international students helping with the 
garden work as well as the normal weekly volunteers groups. This year we had two ten 
month placements Elias and Christina from Austria, both are living in the Ranger flat and have 
taken to life here in Mount Edgcumbe with great zeal.  We will have a further nine German 
placement student for six weeks over the summer.

3.4 Repairs to the French Gardn pond have been completed thanks to a donation from the 
‘Friends’.  A number of leaky pipes in the Park have been repaired over the winter months. 
This has shown a marked reduction in our water bill.

3.5 The Elizabeth II Knot Garden is now maturing into a very beautiful garden indeed.

3.6 The location of the miniature railway has moved to ‘Earls Halt’ at the bottom of the Park at 
the top of the lime avenue.  This has enabled a more extensive circular layout. It is hoped to 
be giving rides to the Park visitors in the school holidays. 



Revised Jul 2013

4.0 Buildings and Park Infrastructure

4.1 Work is underway to convert the Orangery Lodge to a holiday let. Initial works fixing a very 
leaky roof and chimney are underway and the concrete render has been removed from the 
outside of the building allowing the building to dry out and breathe once more.  The concrete 
render will be replaced with a breathable lime plaster render.  Work will soon commence on 
the inside of the building.   The orangery lodge will be open for business for the Christmas 
season.

4.2 The Park has continued to be shut at nightfall which has helped greatly with security and 
parking issues. This has been enabled by having a resident gate keeper in West lodge.  West 
Lodge itself has been made habitable and is lived in by our new handyman/gatekeeper role.

4.3 There is now a pay and display machine at Rame Head car park, this has been raising £1000 a 
month over the last couple of months compares to around £150 in the honesty box. This will 
enable cleaning costs of the toilets to be covered along with remedial works to the carpark.

4.4 The honesty box at Maker carpark is still ticking over and makes around £250 per month. 
There are new carpark charges for the Park and early indications indicate that this will 
generate significant revenue increase for the Park. They had not been raised for some six 
years.

4.5 A new generic Mount Edgcumbe Leaflet is available.

4.6 The Park has a new low mileage land rover that will help replace the ageing fleet of vehicles 
and also provide us with a more suitable wedding vehicle.  This along with two new chainsaws 
has been part of the phased replacement of some very ancient equipment.

4.7 A new ‘Buggy’ has been purchased by the ‘Friends’ and along with our volunteer drivers is 
moving people around the Park, chiefly between the Cremyll ferry and Barrow Centre.

4.8 The HLF bid for English Garden House is nearing completion and will be submitted for the 
August deadline.  This is the last round of the Heritage Enterprise Scheme so is fiercely 
competitive. It is a strong bid however and should it not be successful then it can be 
submitted again when a new fund is launched.

 
4.0 Events

4.1 Between November and July we hosted over 12 events; the season got off to a great start 
with the increasingly popular Easter egg hunt organised by the ‘Friends’ this event grows every 
year and is very popular with local families 744 children and over 2000 people  visited the 
Park.

4.2 The Park hosted a Pink Floyd tribute band gig that had amazing weather and was a great 
success.  An all ticket event 500 tickets sold out in two weeks. This was third party event 
which netted the Park some £1000 for little involvement and risk.  It is likely that this event 
will be repeated and lessons learnt (more beer tents) will be incorporated. 

 
4.3 The ‘Fairy Fest’ was a great success this year with a new world record for a gathering of 

Unicorns!



Revised Jul 2013

4.4 A ‘Mind and Body’ event took place in the Earls Garden this was a privately-run event that 
made the park some £1000.

 
4.5 Miss Ivy events continue to run events at the Park and the Doggy day, Jazz and Gin, and Great 

British Summer Fete’ out series of events continues to be very popular with four legged as 
well as two legged customers. The park continues its policy of having more events but passing 
the risk onto event Companies in return for a percentage of profit. .

4.6 ‘Paddle Fest’ also took place for the second year running and raised money for Military 
charities as well as the Park.  It is hoped to widen the audience for next year’s event and have 
more people from the Public involved in all things with paddles.

4.7 The Green Man was a great success with over 8,000 people visiting during the weekend of 
particular interest was the medieval pageant by the ‘Age of Chivalry’.

5.0 Business Development

5.1 The park continues to develop its holiday let business stream it has three holiday lets at the 
moment and will have four by Christmas with seven by 2022.  These will account for over 
£150,000 of revenue income after costs for the Park, and as such form a major contribution 
to the Parks revenue stream.

5.2 The Parks Shepherds Huts are doing much better this summer after the late release last year.

5.3 Negotiations over the installation of a high ropes course are still under way. 

5.4 Planning application for a holiday let at Rame Head adjacent to the ‘Coastwatch’ building has 
been sought from Cornwall Council.  New purpose built fully accessible toilets will be 
constructed in the old generator store.

5.5 Holiday let occupancy targets are being met and exceeded.

5.6 The Park has started recouping the electricity savings as a result of the switch over to LED 
initially the savings offset the loan for the installation works.

5.7 The Park now has WIFI coverage to all its main buildings. 

5.8 The House has now reached capacity in terms of letting out empty or redundant rooms. We 
now have an accountant’s office, ceramics storage area and the Lyhner River Barge CIC, all 
renting office space.

5.9 Captain Blake’s (Wiggle YMCA) hut on the cliff is about to start work and will be completed 
for next summer’s holiday let season. 

5.10 The cleaning contract for the Park has seen its first year with Kernow Maid; this will represent 
a £12000 saving a year for the Park and allow a more flexible operation, focusing cleaning time 
on seasonal demand.

5.11 Some £6,000 worth of income has been generated for the Park from filming over the last 
year, and it is hoped that this will continue to be a regular, if unpredictable, income stream for 
the Park.



Revised Jul 2013

5.12 The Park has produced a new conference pack for the conference season but has yet to reach 
its targets in terms of conferencing income. 

6.0 Weddings

6.1 The wedding business is some £20,000 down on last year’s takings and as such the Park 
Manager has introduced an out of hours  consultant on a percentage of sales, this has bought 
in £10,000 worth of bookings since the winter months but these are for future years.  The 
key problem is one of operational flexibility and being open to calls in the evening and 
weekends.

Summary

Through good housekeeping and increased revenue the Park will generate a surplus this year. 
This will be further enhanced as the income generating components of the commercial capital 
works begin to kick in this financial year.

Hard surface degeneration particularly on the concrete tracks, tree safety works and an aging 
fleet of vehicles will however place an increasing burden on the finances of the Park over 
coming years.  



The Friends of Mount Edgcumbe Country Park

Report to the Joint Committee, 20 July 2018

Membership

Membership is open to all who wish to support and assist the Park in preserving, maintaining and 
enhancing the amenities available for the benefit of all users.

The number of members currently stands at 595. The increase in membership fees in January, for the 
first time since 1998, resulted in a slight drop, however new members continue to join, particularly 
through having a presence at events. While the total constitutes a minor percentage of those visiting the 
Park the input from the members in financial and practical terms is significant. 

Financial Support

In the first six months of 2018 The Friends have donated over £28,000 to fund projects within the Park. 
These include purchases of a replacement shuttle bus and repairs to the second shuttle bus, portable 
saw bench, blinds for the Chapel within the House, temporary trackway to enable events to take place in 
wet weather and a replacement cover for the polytunnel; funding for preparatory work for a grant 
application towards repairs to the English Garden House and a donation towards the construction costs 
of the external miniature railway, the purchase of costumes and memorabilia pertaining to the events 
surrounding Mayflower 400 and the Spring bedding plants for the Formal Gardens. 

Practical Support

People join The Friends because they care about the Park and our aim is to persuade more of the 
members to join the ranks of those who volunteer to help in a practical way. The majority of volunteers 
are members of The Friends and they drive the buggies, act as house stewards, assist the gardeners and 
rangers, make the costumes for the ‘dressing up’ room in the House, provide traffic management advice 
and have assisted in the newly created apiary.

Since the last meeting The Friends provided volunteers to assist in the running of the Christmas Fayre 
and the Green Man weekend. 

Social Events

The Friends aim to provide an annual programme of social events catering for a wide range of tastes and 
ages. Since November 2017 we have organised a concert in the House and an Easter Egg trail which 
attracted 774 child entrants plus family members, giving a total of around 2000 visitors to the Park. This 
was followed by a trip to the Houses of Parliament and the Jewel Tower, a boat trip to the Breakwater 
and a Vintage afternoon tea in the marquee.

Following discussion with the Local Area Safety Group a new traffic arrangement has been agreed for 
the Summer Fayre in August. The price of car parking has been raised from £5 to £10 (the first increase 
for 14 years) and it is hoped that this will encourage car sharing. Four boats will be in service between 
Plymouth and the Park on that day to cater for visitors from Plymouth.



Friends Lodge

The Friends have vacated the Orangery Lodge to facilitate its conversion to a holiday let. We are 
currently seeking an alternative location that will satisfy Historic England whilst also be adjacent to the 
main pedestrian activity so as to be able to provide a centre for information about the Park and provide 
an income to be recycled into Park funds.

Concerns over Park funding

Despite making representations to Cornwall Council, The Friends were unable to persuade it to reverse 
its proposal to delete £65,000 in the draft 2018 Budget and set that budget line to £0. We find it 
alarming that while the Council is ‘obliged’ to provide funding in line with the budget prediction 
presented to the Joint Committee there is no specific commitment identified in their own expenditure 
plan. We would hope that this is corrected in the 2019 Cornwall Council budget.

The Friends are becoming increasingly aware of the apparent reduction in care being shown towards the 
valuable artefacts contained within the House. For several years now there appears to have been no 
support given by the Museum service, paintings are deteriorating, dehumidifiers are no longer in place 
and curtains are falling apart. We do not consider that this can be tackled by moving expenditure from 
other services within the Park that are already operating under stress but by recognising that the overall 
operational budget, circa £834,000, is set too low being based on a figure set several years ago that had 
remained stagnant and not allowed for inflation and other increasing costs. 

Miscellaneous

General, Financial, Reserves and Data Protection policy documents, demonstrating that the organisation 
and activities of The Friends comply with the updated requirements of the Charity Commission, were 
approved by members at our AGM in March.


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	Minutes

	7 Revenue Outturn 2017/18 and Budget 2018/19
	Signed_Annual_Governance_Statement_1718

	9 Park Manager's Report
	10 Friends of Mount Edgcumbe Country Park Update

